ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 3, 2003
1:35 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or John Cowdery, Chair

Senat or Thomas Wagoner, Vice Chair
Senat or CGene Therri aul t

Senat or Ceor gi anna Li ncoln

Senat or Donny d son

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 112
"An Act increasing the notor fuel tax and repealing the special
tax rates on blended fuels; and providing for an effective
date."

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS ACTI ON
SB 112 - No previous action to record.
W TNESS REG STER

Comm ssi oner Bill Corbus

Depart ment of Revenue

PO Box 110400

Juneau, AK 99811-0400

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Introduced SB 112 for the adm nistration

Ms. Robin WIson

Tax Division

Departnent of Revenue

PO Box 110400

Juneau, AK 99811-0400

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to CSSB 112( TRA)

M. R chard Schmtz

Staff to Senator Cowdery
Al aska State Capitol

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -1- April 3, 2003



Juneau, AK 99801-1182
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions about CSSB 112( TRA)

M. Pat Ganbl e

Chi ef Executive Oficer

Al aska Railroad Corporation

PO Box 107500

Anchor age, AK 99510- 7500

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 112

M. George Levasseuer

Departnent of Transportation &
Public Facilities

3132 Channel Dr.

Juneau, AK 99801-7898

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 112

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
TAPE 03-12, SIDE A

CHAIR JOHN COANDERY called the Senate Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:35 p.m Senators Therriault,
Wagoner, Lincoln and Chair Cowdery were present. He announced
the commttee would take wup SB 112 and that he asked
Comm ssioner Corbus to testify first. He then announced that
Senator O son arrived.

SB 112- MOTOR FUEL TAX: GOVT AGENCY REFUNDS

SENATOR WAGONER noved to adopt a proposed conmttee substitute
(CS) to SB 112, | abeled version Q

CHAI R COWDERY announced that wthout objection, the notion
carried.

COW SSIONER BILL CORBUS, Departnent of Revenue, told nenbers
that Robin WIson, revenue auditor in the Tax Division, was also
avai l abl e to answer questions via tel econference. He comment ed:

G ven the low tax rate on highway notor fuel in Al aska
in conparison with other states, | urge you to agree
that this legislation is a viable nethod of generating
critically needed revenue in the short term until
Al askans are able to realize long-term revenues from
resource devel opnent.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 2- April 3, 2003



Wiy is this legislation necessary? SB 112 is a very
necessary elenent of the CGovernor's overall budget and
investnent plan for fiscal year 2004. Gover nor
Mur kowski's primary mssion is to build a robust
growi ng econony and generate sufficient state revenues
to fund prograns and services that Al askans need and
expect. Passage of SB 112 will help ensure increased
state revenues and my prevent the elimnation or
di m nution of inportant prograns and services.

What this legislation wll acconplish - SB 112 wl|
generate approximately 37.7 mllion in fiscal vyear
"04. For the full fiscal year, this legislation wll
generate 41.1 mllion. This translates to over $3
mllion to the state per nonth. It is tine to increase
the highway notor fuel tax rate. The current highway
notor fuel tax rate in Al aska set 33 years ago in 1970
is 8 cents per gallon. Even at 20 cents per gallon
with the passage of this legislation, Al aska wll
still be in the mddle nationwide in excise tax rates
on highway notor fuel. 22 other states have excise tax
rates on highway notor fuel above 20 cents per gallon
and many of those states add other taxes to highway
notor fuel. In fact, 35 states have conbined state and
|l ocal notor fuel taxes higher than 20 cents per
gallon, ranging from 21 cents per gallon to 38.7 cents
per gall on.

To provide a perspective, according to the Federation
of Tax Admi nistrators of February 2002, the State of
Washi ngton highway notor fuel tax is approximtely 23
cents per gallon and the national average of state and
| ocal gasoline tax is 22.9 cents per gallon.

This legislation wll bring Al aska's highway notor
fuel tax closer to the national average but still stay
below the national average of nearly 23 cents per
gallon. This will be the first increase in Alaska's
hi ghway notor fuel tax in 33 years. This is an
essential conmponent of the Governor's spending and
investnment plan for Alaska he recently submitted to
you for your consideration. The Departnment of Revenue

can and wll efficiently admnister the increased
notor fuel tax as discussed in the departnent's fisca
note. | urge and appreciate your serious consideration

of this legislation and ask you to pass it out of this

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 3- April 3, 2003



commttee today with your support for its enactnent
this session.

COW SSIONER CORBUS then said that M. WIson could provide
technical information pertaining to the admnistration of the
notor fuel tax in general and about SB 112.

CHAIR CONDERY noted that Comm ssioner Corbus had a tine
constraint so he asked nenbers to address questions to him at
this tine.

SENATOR OLSON said that Conm ssioner Corbus stated that this tax
is necessary until revenues are realized from resource
devel opment and asked if this is a tenporary tax until that
tinme.

COM SSIONER CORBUS said at this juncture there is no plan to
reduce the tax that he is aware of. It is a permanent tax.

CHAIR COADERY pointed out that the state did away with its
income tax when it had extra revenue so hopefully the state wl|
have enough revenue in the future to reduce this tax.

SENATOR LI NCOLN said that the reasons given for the increase in
the highway notor fuel tax are highway maintenance and new
hi ghway devel opnent. She asked how the comm ssioner is proposing
to secure this tax for those purposes since funds cannot be
dedi cat ed.

COM SSI ONER CORBUS said there is no straightforward answer to
that question: the tax revenues wll be deposited into the
general fund. The Governor has stated his intent that the tax
revenue is to be used to help pay for maintenance of the road
system

SENATOR LI NCOLN sai d she does not want the public to be deceived
into believing that this tax will go into a dedicated fund. She
then noted the conmmittee substitute will renove the notor fue
tax exenption of the Alaska Railroad Corporation (ARRC) and
asked the adm nistration's position on doing that.

COW SSIONER CORBUS said the administration has not taken a
position on the proposal at this tine.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked how nmuch revenue the existing 8 cent
per gallon fuel tax generates.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -4- April 3, 2003



COWM SSI ONER CORBUS deferred to Ms. W1 son.

M5. ROBIN WLSON, Tax Division Auditor, Departnment of Revenue,
replied that the total revenue generated fromthe notor fuel tax
is approximately $37 million at this tinme but that also includes
aviation fuel and marine fuel. She offered to get nenbers the
exact nunber for highway vehicles after the neeting.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked what the total revenues would be wth
t he proposed i ncrease.

COW SSI ONER CORBUS said for fiscal year '04 the amount will be
$37 mllion, but for a full year the increase should be $41
mllion.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked what the total current maintenance and
operating costs are for the road system

COM SSIONER CORBUS said he would have to defer to the
Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities (DOTPF) for
an answer.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked how, at eight cents per gallon, the
revenues are $37 mllion; yet increasing the tax by another 12
cents per gallon will bring it to $41 mllion.

SENATOR THERRI AULT expl ained that the $41 million is fromthe 12
cent per gallon increase so it is in addition to the $37
mllion.

SENATOR LI NCOLN pointed out that if at eight cents a gallon the
revenue is $37 mllion, an increase of 1.5 tines would anount to
about $$60 mllion.

SENATOR THERRI AULT explained that a portion of the $37 mllion
collected is for aviation and marine fuel, which will not have a
12-cent per gallon increase.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked how nuch the additional 12-cent tax would
raise, if the $37 mllion comes from highway, aviation and
mari ne fuel taxes.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said that is the $41 mllion. He stated the

fuel tax rate increase would not apply to aviation or marine
fuel .

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 5- April 3, 2003



COW SSIONER CORBUS offered to get back to commttee nenbers
with a detailed breakdown of the existing revenues received from
all notor fuel taxes.

M5. WLSON interjected to say she located those nunbers and
st at ed:

O the 37 mllion, approximately 27 mllion is used on
the highway and then there's about six mllion marine
fuel tax and another four or so on aviation. And so
t he nunbers that Comm ssioner Corbus gave you woul d be
the increase over and above that.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if once the tax is increased to 20

cents, the total revenue raised on a full year's worth of
collections from notor fuel for highway vehicles will equal $41
mllion plus $27 mllion.

COWMM SSI ONER CORBUS said that is his understanding.

CHAI R CONDERY asked M. Schmtz to explain the changes made in
the conmmttee substitute.

MR. RICHARD SCHM TZ, staff to Senator Cowdery, told nenbers the
basic change between the original bill and version Q is that
version Q requires Alaska Railroad Corporation (ARRC) to
contribute funds into the fuel tax. After doing sone research
he found out how much diesel fuel the railroad uses each year.
The railroad has not paid tax on fuel in the past because it is
a governnment agency. That issue is addressed on page 5, lines 15
and 16 and on page 4, lines 19 and 20. The | anguage in those two
pl aces renoves the railroad from the category of an agency that
does not pay fuel tax. It also renoves the exenption. Under the
bill the new tax wll be 20 cents per gallon with an 18 cents
per gallon refund for certain situations, one exanple being for
vehicl es that are not used on the highway, such as backhoes. The
bill exenpts the railroad fromthe 18 cents per gallon refund.

CHAIR COWDERY added the railroad issue was raised by the
trucking industry, which feels it is conpeting wth the
railroad. Recently Spenard Builders shipped a l|oad of [|unber
from Seward to Anchorage and the railroad underbid the trucking
industry on 200 loads. He believes it is a matter of fairness
and introduced that provision. The revenue raised from the
railroad will equal $2 mllion. He asked M. Ganble to comment.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 6- April 3, 2003



SENATOR LI NCOLN noted that she asked Comm ssioner Corbus if the
adm nistration supports this bill because the  Governor
introduced it. Comm ssioner Corbus said the admnistration has
not taken a position on it at this tinme. She asked Chair Cowdery
if he worked with the adm nistration.

CHAIR COANDERY said he notified the admnistration that he
pl anned to include that provision in the bill.

MR. PAT GAMBLE, President and Chief QOperating Oficer of the
Al aska Railroad Corporation (ARRC), said he would first speak to

the diesel tax. ARRC believes this bill discrimnates against
the railroad in violation of the federal Railroad Revitalization
and Regul atory Reform Act of 1976 because the bill wll require

the railroad to pay a substantially higher fuel tax than that
paid by barges, ships and aircraft. Congress adopted that act
for the express purpose of protecting the financial stability of
the railroad industry by shielding railroads from discrimnatory
taxation. Several court case decisions from other jurisdictions
have upheld that states may not inpose a fuel tax on railroads
t hat is greater than that imposed on other nodes of
transportation.

MR. GAMBLE said his second point is that ARRC believes it is an
i nappropriate application in that AS 43.40.010 pertains to tax
collection for the construction and maintenance of airports,
hi ghways and port facilities. ARRC, a state agency, pays for all
construction and nmai ntenance costs of the rail bed. Therefore,
ARRC would be at a direct conpetitive disadvantage because,
unlike other transportation industries, ARRC would have to pay
the tax to subsidize roads and pay to naintain its own tracks.

CHAI R CONDERY asked if the railroad crosses roads.

MR. GAMBLE said it does; roads have been built up and down the
rail line long after the railroad was built. He said his third
concern is that, as a state agency charged with making a profit,
it is unusual for a state agency to tax another state agency.
ARRC has | ooked at other states and found no other state that
inposes a fuel or ticket tax on a state-owned railroad. By
ARRC s count, of the 18 state-owned passenger railroads and 2
state owned freight railroads, none are taxed by their states.
He said in ternms of the financial inpact, it is inportant to
note that ARRC receives a considerable anmount of federal funds,
sone directly appropriated from the FRA and others from FTA
formula funds. ARRC |everages the FTA dollars considerably so
that for every ARRC dollar, it receives $9. Therefore a $1.2

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -7- April 3, 2003



mllion tax, which would come off of ARRC s bottom line, would
equate to a $10 nmillion loss in FTA funds. Those funds are
aut hori zed for every passenger-carrying railroad in the country.

CHAI R CONDERY asked, "On that point, M. Ganble, you nmean to say
that your expenses of operation of the railroad - whatever those
expenses - denies you sone federal funds?"

MR. GAMBLE explained if he did not have the capital dollars to
provide for the match at the rate of 9 percent, he would be
unable to pull in approxinmately $10 mllion per year.

CHAI R CONDERY asked if ARRC nmade a profit of about $8 to $10
mllion | ast year.

MR. GAMBLE said it did, if the federal reinbursement figures are
included. He noted if he includes the operating ratio of just
the trains thenselves and whether the train novenents pay,
ARRC s forecast for 2003 is about $1.1 mllion from train
operations. Therefore, a $1.2 mllion tax would put ARRC in the
red in terns of operating ratios for 2003. That wll have two
impacts. First, it will anmpunt to $10 million less in federal
funds than ARRC can provide matching funds for. ARRC has a $300
mllion capital inprovenent program If ARRC s |enders see that
ARRC is not making a profit on train operations, ARRC will have
to explain itself to those |enders. ARRC has debt covenants that
must be covered. He said for a nultitude of reasons, ARRC would
have to question the legality of the CS from the federa
standpoint. In addition, the CS sends a mxed signal to the
railroad in terns of what the state wants the railroad to do:
does it want the railroad to be profitable on its own or does it
want to tax off that profit as a disincentive? He pointed out
that ARRC uses its profit to buy new equi pnment for enployees, to
of fer conpetitive pay to enpl oyees, and to repair buil dings.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked M. Ganble to el aborate on the federa
| aw that prevents a tax from being levied on a state owned
rail road.

MR. GAMBLE said the comon nane of the act is the 4R Act or 49
U S C 11501. It essentially says that this bill would
discrimnate against the railroad because it would require the
railroad to pay a higher fuel tax at 20 cents per gallon than
that paid by barges and ships and aircraft. He said Congress
adopted this statute for the express purpose of protecting the
fi nanci al stability of railroads by shielding them from

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 8- April 3, 2003



discrimnatory taxation of this type. It would put them at a
conpetitive disadvantage with other transportation nodes.

SENATOR THERRI AULT pointed out the railroad pays no tax at this
time while barges, ships and aircraft do. He asked if the
railroad could be taxed at the sane |evel as barges, ships and
aircraft.

MR. GAMBLE said that it could, according to his understandi ng of
the law. Barges and ships currently pay five cents per gallon
while aircraft pay three cents per gallon.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked, if the railroad was taxed, how ARRC
woul d consider that in its rate setting nethodol ogy.

MR. GAMBLE said ARRC has not figured that out yet. He indicated
that the last tine ARRC tried to set rates on one of its
passenger services it received quite a response from Tal keet na
area residents. That service is a noney-losing proposition that
woul d | ose even nore noney if the tax were inposed. Sonme of the
railroad' s break-even propositions would not be profitable and
woul d add burden on to the railroad and take up line space. ARRC
woul d have to do an analysis of all routes, including the export
coal. ARRC is in negotiations right now to bring that service
back on. ARRC s position has been to assunme a rate that 1is
virtually a break-even rate in order to get coal noving out of
Al aska.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if ARRC calculated any nunbers to
determ ne the rates for the coal shipnent.

MR. GAMBLE replied ARRC just began to do that when it saw nore
detail on the bill

CHAI R CONDERY said he did not enter into this issue wthout sone
| egal advice. He pointed out the railroad is a public
corporation of the State of Alaska. It is a creature of state
not federal, law and is subject to the laws of the state. Under
the Alaska Constitution, the real and personal property of the
state and its political subdivisions is exenpt from taxation
except as provided by law. He noted that under that provision
the Legislature has the authority to determine whether and to
what extent property of the state is subject to taxation. He
said the federal Al aska Railroad Transfer Act does not appear to
pl ace any constraint on the ability of the state to inpose taxes
on ARRC. He stated that wunder the terns of that act, the
revenues generated by the state-owned railroad should be

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 9- April 3, 2003



retained and managed by the state-owned railroad for railroad
rel ated purposes. He said, according to Senator Ted Stevens,
that provision was intended to avoid the need for annual
appropriations for the railroad from the state. He said,
according to the legal opinion he received, he believes the
state has the right to tax because the railroad is now a state
entity. He pointed out the railroad is in conpetition wth
private industry, which nust pay taxes. He said the railroad
woul d have to raise its rates if it can't conpete.

MR. GAMBLE comrented that his |egal advisors have told him that
the state cannot preenpt federal code so the outcome of this
debate will nost likely have to be determned in court. It would
be ARRC s responsibility to carry that forward to get a
determ nation

CHAI R CONDERY agreed that is a |ikely outcone.

SENATOR WAGONER asked M. Ganble to restate his remark about the
negotiations for the coal contract and the break-even rate.

MR. GAMBLE said he was wusing that as an exanple of a case
whereby the railroad would take on an el enent of business wth a
very narrow operating margin. If ARRC had to include the cost of
the tax, it could make the difference between a positive,
neutral, or negative cash flow. Therefore, ARRC would have to do
a segnent analyses with the addition of the tax and deterni ne,
on a case-by-case basis, the cost for both passengers and
freight. He was using that as an exanple of a segnent where the
operating ratio is very close to 1:1.

SENATOR WAGONER replied that is a mmjor contract for such a
close ratio because, in that case, the state is subsidizing the
cost of transferring the coal so that a private entity can nmake
a profit. He noted he has a problemw th that.

SENATOR THERRI AULT referred to a docunent before commttee
menbers that shows the breakdown of the anount of fuels used by
the railroad. He asked if the same 4R Act speaks to the taxation
of fuels that the railroad uses in vehicles that drive on the
r oad.

MR. GAMBLE said that ARRC has about 180 vehicles ranging from
smal |l pick-up trucks to large sem -tractor trailer trucks. ARRC
has given an estimate of the approximate fuel purchase used for
t hose vehicles and what the tax on them would anmount to. He said
the 4R Act does not apply to those vehicles. ARRC uses about

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -10- April 3, 2003



225,000 gallons for gas and diesel fuel each year for its 180
vehicles and has estimated a $45,000 tax increase for them He
said ARRC has never tried to recover the taxes it has paid for
fuel at the gas punp.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if ARRC is currently paying the $45, 000
in taxes.

MR GAMBLE said that is correct.

SENATOR WAGONER asked if ARRC has published rates that it
charges for nost of the comopdities that it transports or
whet her it negotiates each tinme it hauls an item

MR. GAMBLE said that ARRC does both. It negotiates individually
for small contracts but it mght sign a contract that |asts a
couple of years with a cruise ship conpany, for exanple.

SENATOR WAGONER asked if that would be for passenger travel.

MR. GAMBLE said that is correct. For freight, ARRC attenpts to
sign longer term contracts but many of them are very short. He
i ndi cated the Spenard Lunber shipnment was a one-tine opportunity
and is an exanple of a short-termcontract.

SENATOR WAGONER asked if ARRC has a published rate for shipping
building materials but, in the exanple of Spenard when the
anount is large, it negotiates an individual contract.

MR, GAMBLE was not sure what nenbers neant by the term
"published rate."

SENATOR WAGONER i ndicated that truck conpanies that transport
frei ght have published rates.

MR. GAMBLE said he would have to check all of ARRC s rates and
is reluctant to give an answer w thout doing so beforehand. He
offered to get back to conmttee nenbers with an answer. He said
ARRC negotiates individual rates to a |arge degree but he cannot
say there are no published rates.

CHAI R COADERY i nforned Senator Wagoner that the Legislature has
made attenpts in the past to put the railroad under the
Executive Budget Act to give the Legislature the ability to | ook
at its records. He said one of those attenpts cane as close as
one vote but, right now, the Legislature cannot |ook at the

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -11- April 3, 2003



books. He asked M. Ganble iif the rates are proprietary
i nformati on.

MR. GAMBLE said to his understanding, the Legislative Budget and
Audit Committee can | ook at the books and reveal everything but
proprietary information. He noted, "O course, that is their
interpretation so that's how | understand the audit process.™

CHAIR CONDERY asked M. Ganble if he favors placing ARRC under
t he Executive Budget Act.

MR. GAMBLE said not under the current rules and directions that
have been given to the railroad for its operations.

CHAI R COANDERY asked whether M. Ganble would determ ne whether
to file alawsuit if this legislation is enacted.

MR. GAMBLE said he is speaking to the commttee wthout any
direction from the ARRC Board of Directors or the third floor.
He said he is trying to answer questions wth no know edge of
the politics.

SENATOR WAGONER asked the cost, in fuel, to run a train round-
trip between Anchorage and Seward enpty one way.

MR. GAMBLE said he would have to get that information

TAPE 03-12, SIDE B

2:21 p.m

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked M. Ganble what effects a tax m ght
have on the extension of the rail |I|ine through Canada and
whether it would nake the rail rates such that the railroad

coul d not conpete with barge traffic.

MR. GAMBLE said he believes the inpact on the railroad is quite
straightforward. That cost would sinply conme off of the bottom
line. It is an expense that goes to the bottomline that is the
function of a train-operating ratio that is close to 1:1. He
said the state's charge to the railroad is to be profitable, as
any private corporation. The state has equipped the railroad
wWith tools to assist that profitability, including the fuel tax
exenption. He said this legislation represents a change in
attitude toward what the railroad was designed to be. He said a
profitable railroad has been of great benefit to the state in
nore ways than just the $1 mllion that would cone from this
tax. He repeated that it is quite inportant to understand the

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -12- April 3, 2003



| everage on each dollar that ARRC puts into its capital program
is to the benefit of the State of Alaska. He said if ARRC gets

$10 mllion less as a result of the fuel tax that is $10 mllion
in terns of |labor and supplies that wll not go into the
econony.

CHAIR COANDERY asked M. Ganble if he believes the State of
Al aska woul d benefit if the trucking industry nade a profit.

MR. GAMBLE said certainly. He said the railroad probably gets
along with the trucking industry better now than during any
other time, one reason being the truckers haul what the railroad
can't and vice versa. He said the case of the Spenard Lunber is
one where sone overlap occurred but, in general, there is very
little overl ap.

CHAI R COADERY pointed out that many of the truck conpanies have
contracts with the marine conpanies to deliver vans but have no
way to recover the cost of the fuel tax.

SENATOR LI NCOLN referred to the on-road vehicles owed by ARRC
and said it gives her no heartburn to include those vehicles in
the fuel tax but that anobunts to only $45,000. She noted M.
Ganbl e said that ARRC has not sought reinbursenent for those
taxes and ARRC is working to elimnate fuel tanks in areas wth
retail fuel outlets. She asked if ARRC is an entity rather than
a state agency.

MR. GAMBLE said that is correct; ARRC is an instrunentality of
the state.

SENATOR LINCOLN referred to | anguage on page 5, line 16, which
reads:

...for the purposes of this subparagraph, the Al aska
Railroad Corporation (under AS 42.40) is not a
federal, state, or |ocal governnment agency;

She said she is bewildered by why the legislation has to say
ARRC is not an agency if that is already clarified in AS 42.40.
She noted that M. Ganble pointed out, in ARRC s 2003 report to
the Legislature, the Alaska Railroad is nmandated to be a self-
sustaining corporation required to conduct its business wthout
operating subsidies fromthe state. She was unsure the exenption
woul d be considered as a subsidy but expressed concern that the
Legislature is considering giving the railroad a 500 foot right-
of -way to extend to Canada. She said on one hand the Legislature

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -13- April 3, 2003



is pushing ARRC to do things while on the other it wants to take
$1.1 mllion of its operating budget.

CHAI R CONDERY interrupted to say that a commttee nenber needed
to leave and had a question of a Departnent of Transportation
and Public Facilities (DOTPF) official.

MR. LEVASSEUER, State Mintenance Engi neer, DOIPF, told nenbers,
in response to a previous question, that DOIPF spends about $57
mllion of general fund dollars on state maintenance annually.
DOTPF al so spends another $50 mllion from the general fund
annually to match federal funds for the highway system

SENATOR THERRI AULT cal cul ated the state spends $107 million per
year but is raising $27 mllion and said a dedicated fund is not
necessary to steer all of that noney into road naintenance
because the state is already spending that much.

MR. LEVASSEUER said that is correct and there is a huge backl og
of deferred maintenance projects on the highway system He said
the state's outlay is nmuch greater than the anticipated revenue
from the increased fuel tax. He then said DOITPF is getting
further behind on the deferred maintenance projects each year
He pointed out the increase in the fuel tax is not intended to
affect fuel for snow machine use, notor boats, or ATVs in the
rural areas. He said the Departnent of Revenue plans to put into
pl ace a nechanism so that rural areas not connected to the road
systemw || not pay that tax.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if the residents in those areas
currently pay the 8 cents per gallon.

MR. LEVASSEUER said they do in nost areas but they can get that
noney refunded.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if the refund is based on a signed
affidavit saying the vehicle is used off road.

M5. WLSON gave an explanation of how the refund structure
works. There are two different types of refunds. The first is
for a situation in which the use is fully exenpt, for exanple
heating fuel. There are two refund nechanisns for that
situation. The dealer that sells the fuel can choose to not
charge the customer the tax and the dealer can file a claim for
a refund. The other alternative is the dealer may charge the tax
and the user then applies for a refund. There is no requirenent
that it be done one way or the other. That is not true with off-

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -14- April 3, 2003



road refunds, where the entire tax is not refunded; 6 of the 8
cents are. The dealer nust collect the 8 cents and the user then
applies for a refund of 6 cents. She said the refund nust be
claimed within the year of the purchase using a sinple form

CHAIR COMNDERY announced his intention to hold SB 112 in
committee today.

2:37 p.m

SENATOR WAGONER asked in which areas of the state residents are
eligible for the 6 cent off-road tax refund. He asked if that is
for off-road vehicles statewide, so that a four-wheeler in Kena
woul d be eligible.

M5. WLSON explained the refund is available statew de for those
types of vehicles. It also applies to any vehicle used on a
hi ghway that is not required to be l|icensed. Therefore, in a
renote area, the state may not require vehicles to be I|icensed
on local roads so a pick-up driven on that road would not pay
the tax. The departnent does not have a list of the roads that
are not considered to be public. Usually it is fairly apparent
whet her a road is connected to "public ways" or whether the road
is for local use only. The departnent sonetinmes contacts the
t axpayer or the locality for clarification.

SENATOR WAGONER said he questions why the state does that for 6
cents per gallon and whether it costs the state nore to
adm ni ster than the anmount reinbursed.

M5. WLSON replied, "...I can't really speak to the thinking
historically on that one. | know that probably the biggest off-
road claimnts are your construction conpanies, mning conpanies
and so on that use a lot of what we consider to be off-road
equi pnent . "

SENATOR WAGONER said he was concerned about the four wheelers
and the snow machi nes.

M5. WLSON said she does not know why the refund program was set
up that way.

SENATOR OLSON asked for an estimate of how nuch of the tax
collected is not refunded to eligible recipients every year.

M5. WLSON said the departnment does not have any way to neasure
the refunds that are not cl ai ned.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -15- April 3, 2003



SENATOR OLSON asked if a 100,000 gallon tank used each year in
Hooper Bay woul d generate a $6, 000 ref und.

M5. WLSON said that is correct.

MR. LEVASSEUER noted the current 8-cent tax was instituted in
1961. If it were adjusted for the CPl since that tine, it would
equal about 48 cents. At 8 cents, Alaska's fuel tax is the
lowest in the nation. He said DOIPF and the adm nistration
strongly support passage of this bill

CHAIR CONDERY said he recently saw prices of $2.12 and $2.19
cents per gallon in other states.

SENATOR WAGONER noted that Alaska is nunber two because
Georgia's tax is 7.5 cents per gallon.

MR. LEVASSEUER pointed out that Georgia charges a sales tax on
top of the 7.5 cents.

SENATOR LI NCOLN reni nded Chair Cowdery that her question to M.
Ganbl e was not yet answered.

MR. GAMBLE said that Senator Lincoln touched a nerve and got
right to the heart of the issue that ARRC is debating. ARRC is
currently facing a nunber of initiatives set up by the
Legislature, SB 112 being one, to change the original fornulas
that set up the railroad during the transfer. He said it is not
his place to defend to the death against sonmething the
Legislature believes is for the betternent of the state. H's job
is to take the guidance within statute and nmake sure that ARRC
uphol ds that guidance. However, ARRC gets caught between a rock
and a hard place when sonme of the devel opnental and nore risky
undertakings that the railroad mght participate in clash head-
on with what is necessary for the railroad to maintain a healthy
bottom line and the appropriate ratios that go wth that. He
said if ARRC is to do that, it is dependent on the elenents of
the original fornmula, such as not being taxed, being indemified
and being able to use its land for revenue. Those are the
reasons the railroad has been successful. If the Legislature
wants to change those elenents, ARRC wants to l|ook at the
uni nt ended consequences carefully because ARRC s current success
means the original fornmula was a good one. He said if ARRC is
penalized for its success by giving away its bottomline to the
general fund as opposed to continually allow ARRC to put its

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -16- April 3, 2003



profits back into the railroad, he would caution the alternative
plan is not as good as the original one.

MR. GAMBLE said the weight of a freight train directly relates
to the maintenance of that |ine. ARRC puts its profits into
maintaining its rail line - no one else pays for that. ARRC w ||
do an analysis on maintenance to make sure ARRC can nove the
freight and passengers. He hopes if the rail line is extended,
that forrmula would pertain as it has for the last 17 years. He
said his best technical and business advice is that the existing
formula is a good one and by:

...messing with it, we're going to pull a thread on
this fabric that's going to start to wunravel. |
guarantee you that once the thread gets pulled, it's
just sinply human nature, back to the well and try it
again and try it again in the future. | would just
sinply counsel that it would be a shane to see the
railroad ultimately becone nore and nore of a ward of
the state when, in fact, for the nost part, you don't
have to worry about wus right now in terns of our
health and welfare...."

SENATOR WAGONER asked M. Ganble to include the annual nunber of
passengers and the costs for those trips when he sends the fue
consunption information.

MR. GAMBLE agreed to do so.

SENATOR WAGONER asked how nuch ARRC s fuel costs increased in
the last year and how it passes that cost on to its customers.
He pointed out that he owned a honme inprovenent center and had
products of various weights hauled. He said if the truck conpany
had a fuel <cost increase, it automatically added a fuel
surcharge to its rates. He asked if ARRC does the sane thing.

MR. GAMBLE said it does partially. For exanple, it can apply a
surcharge to its maritinme traffic that arrives via barge.
However, it cannot apply a surcharge to its passenger operations
in which it has contracts with the cruise ship conpanies and it
does not apply a surcharge when noving petroleum products from
the refinery to Anchorage. ARRC s rates are set such that it
cannot apply a surcharge in that case.

SENATOR WAGONER asked if ARRC is then eating increased fuel
costs.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -17- April 3, 2003



MR. GAMBLE said he would not say that, because ARRC has a very
conplicated contract with Wllianms [refinery] regarding fuel and
fuel price increases or decreases that works for both parties.
It is a hedge. ARRC buys futures with Wllians for fuel as well.
ARRC works that in an entirely different way than it does for
barge traffic for which it sinply applies a surcharge. He said
ARRC does not apply a surcharge for passenger traffic.

CHAI R CONDERY noted that M. Ganble said ARRC would be unable to

recover a 12 cent increase in the fuel tax. He asked, "But
haven't fuel prices [gone] up at least that in the |ast year?
And you absorbed that sonmehow and it probably will go back down,
we hope. "

MR. GAMBLE said ARRC did absorb sonme of that increase, just |ike
it absorbs other cyclical expenses. He said a few tines the cost
of fuel increased and then decreased so quickly ARRC could not
even apply a surcharge. However, to the degree ARRC can apply a
surcharge to a portion of its railroad business, it wll.

CHAI R CONDERY noted the trucking industry is faced wwth the sane
problem It has contracts to deliver vans and if this tax is
i npl enented, it cannot recover those costs until those contracts
conme up for renewal

MR. GAMBLE agreed and said to the degree all of the fuel taxes
are pooled and sonme of it cones back to ARRC to help maintain

the rail line, ARRC could sit down and |ook at that. ARRC wears
down the rail line with trains and ARRC pays for it. If none of
the tax increase will go toward rail line maintenance, ARRC w ||

have to "eat" that cost.

CHAI R CONDERY noted that ARRC nmade a profit |ast year while sone
of the trucking industry did not. He then announced he would
hold the bill in commttee for another hearing.

MR. GAMBLE thanked nenbers for the opportunity to testify and
agreed that ARRC made a profit last year, but if real estate
revenue weren't included, the train operations would have been
very margi nal .

CHAI R CONDERY announced he was holding SB 112 in commttee and
then adjourned the neeting at 2:55 p. m

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 18- April 3, 2003



